

F B McArdle **Chief Executive**

South Derbyshire District Council, Civic Offices, Civic Way, Swadlincote, Derbyshire DE11 0AH.

www.southderbyshire.gov.uk **@SDDC** on Twitter @southderbyshiredc on Facebook

Please ask for Democratic Services Phone (01283) 595722/ 595848 Typetalk 18001 DX 23912 Swadlincote

Democraticservices@southderbyshire.gov.uk

Our Ref Your Ref

Date: 20 December 2022

Dear Councillor

Council

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED to attend the Meeting of the Council to be held at Council Chamber (Extraordinary), Civic Offices, Civic Way, Swadlincote on Thursday, 05 January 2023 at 18:00 to transact the business set out on the attached agenda.

Yours faithfully,

Chief Executive

To:-

Labour Group

LANDE MEAN

Councillor Dunn (Chair), Councillor Bambrick (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Gee, Heath, L. Mulgrew, M. Mulgrew, Pearson, Pegg, Rhind, Richards, Shepherd, Singh, Southerd, Stuart, Taylor and Tilley.

Conservative Group

Councillors Ackroyd, Atkin, Bridgen, Brown, Corbin, Dawson, Fitzpatrick, Ford, Haines, Hewlett, Lemmon, Muller, Patten, Redfern, Smith and Watson.

Independent Group

Councillors MacPherson and Roberts.

Non-Grouped

Councillors Churchill and Wheelton.



Page 1 of 57

AGENDA

Open to Public and Press

- 1 Apologies
- 2 To note any declarations of interest arising from any items on the Agenda
- 3 To receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader and Head of Paid Service.
- To receive any questions by members of the public pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No.10.
- To receive any questions by Members of the Council pursuant to Council procedure Rule No. 11.
- 6 EAST MIDLANDS DEVOLUTION DEAL AND MAYORAL 3 57
 COMBINED COUNTY AUTHORITY
- 7 The Chairman may therefore move:-
 - That in accordance with Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the Meeting as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that there would be disclosed exempt information as defined in the paragraph of Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Act indicated in the header to each report on the Agenda.
- To receive any Exempt questions by Members of the Council pursuant to Council procedure Rule No. 11.

REPORT TO: EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM: 6

CATEGORY:

DATE OF MEETING:

05 JANUARY 2023

RECOMMENDED

REPORT FROM: ARDIP SANDHU- MONITORING

OFFICER

OPEN

DOC:

MEMBERS' LIZ PAGE- LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC

CONTACT POINT: SERVICES MANAGER

elisabeth.page@southderbyshire.gov.uk

SUBJECT: EAST MIDLANDS DEVOLUTION

DEAL AND MAYORAL COMBINED

COUNTY AUTHORITY

WARD(S) AFFECTED: **ALL**

TERMS OF REFERENCE:

1.0 Recommendations

1.1 That Council formally acknowledges the content of the East Midlands Devolution Deal signed by the four upper tier authorities on 30th August 2022.

1.2 That Council considers the detail and implications of the East Midlands Devolution Deal (the Devolution Deal) and proposes a response to the consultation.

2.0 Purpose of the Report

- 2.1 To provide the Council with an overview of the Devolution Deal and the governance and financial implications for the Council.
- 2.2 To seek an agreed Council response to the consultation.

3.0 Detail

Background

- 3.1 In February 2022, the Government published its White Paper on Levelling Up, a significant set of proposals which look to address geographical disparities in funding, productivity and growth across England.
- 3.2 As part of the Levelling Up White Paper, Government announced that Derbyshire and Derby City were one of nine areas invited to agree new county deals, extending devolution across England. Invitations to apply for a County deal were also extended to Nottinghamshire and Leicestershire which provided the opportunity to pursue a wider Combined Authority (CA) deal at a regional level.

- 3.3 Whilst Leicestershire declined to cooperate the Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire four upper tier councils (Derbyshire County Council, Derby City Council, Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City Council) agreed to cooperate on the creation of a new devolution deal that would cover the D2N2 LEP area by establishing a Mayoral Combined County Authority (MCCA).
- 3.4 At the end of March 2022, following discussions with government, the upper tier authorities submitted initial proposals for the establishment of an East Midlands Mayoral County Combined Authority (EMMCCA), with a target agreement date of April 2023.
- 3.5 Subsequently, during summer 2022, the upper tier authorities were asked by government to accelerate the negotiations with a view to an agreement being reached on an EMMCCA by late August/early September 2022. A consequence of this, is that whilst the broad terms of the Devolution Deal and governance arrangements would be agreed, furthermore detailed arrangements on specific areas of devolution and governance would need to follow.
- 3.6 The Devolution Deal Proposal was formally announced and signed by the government and upper tier authorities on 30 August 2022.

Key Issues

The Devolution Deal

4.1 The following provides an overview;

Governance

The EMMCCA will have up to 17 Members in total comprising:

- The directly elected Mayor;
- 8 Constituent Council Members (Members appointed by the constituent upper tier councils, with each Constituent Council appointing 2 Members);
- Non-Constituent Members nominated by the District and Borough Councils within the Area (with 2 Non-Constituent Members to be nominated by Derbyshire District and Borough Councils, and 2 Non-Constituent Members to be nominated by Nottinghamshire District and Borough Councils);

A key area of focus for the EMMCCA will be economy, industry and business, where Government is clear that the independent business voice for the Area must be given sufficient prominence in governance arrangements. As a result, consideration is being given to appointing either a Non-Constituent or Associate Member who can represent the views of business on the EMMCCA.

Up to three further Non-Constituent or Associate Members. Initially, these three further Memberships will not be nominated/appointed. It will be for the EMMCCA to determine whether the three additional Memberships will be used, and if so, what interests those Memberships should seek to represent on the EMMCCA.

Notably-

• Each member of the upper tier authorities will have one vote each (8 votes in total), and the Mayor will have one vote. The EMMCCA has the discretion to allow other members to vote.

- The EMMCCA can create committees which can include representatives from city, county, district, and borough councils, and other stakeholders including Audit and Scrutiny Committees.
- Some of the powers held by the EMMCCA and/or the mayor will be national government powers. Some will be powers already held by the city and county councils.
- There appears to be some overlapping of functions between the District and the EMMCCA.
- The D2N2 LEP will be integrated into the new EMMCCA.

4.2 Resources

The EMMCA will be funded by-

- An East Midlands Fund, providing £38 million per year of capital/revenue funding over a 30-year period, totalling £1.14 billion.
- Capacity Funding of £500,000 in 2023/24 and £1 million in 2024/25 to support the MCCA in its early stages.
- Devolved Capital Funding of £16.8 million in 2024/5 to support the building of new homes on brownfield land, subject to sufficient projects being identified.
- Capacity funding of £918,000 across 2023/24 and 2024/25 to support the pipeline of housing sites.
- In year capital funding of up to £18 million to support the delivery of shorterterm housing and net zero priorities.
- Capacity funding to support the preparation of a Local Transport Plan.
- Responsible for devolved funding for projects within the Road Investment Strategy 2 (RIS2), Levelling-Up Fund (LUF) major capital programmes and UK Shared Prosperity Fund.
- Fully devolved Adult Education Budget.
- Power to borrow up to an agreed cap for non-transport functions.

4.3 New devolved functions and powers of the Mayor and EMMCCA

- Designation of a Mayoral Development Area (MDA), with consent of relevant District and Borough Councils.
- Housing and land acquisition powers, housing supply, land development and regeneration, commercial space, and infrastructure, working closely with Homes England. Relevant District and Borough Council consent also needed where Homes England compulsory purchase powers are being exercised.
- Business rate supplement on non-domestic ratepayers to fund Mayoral Functions.
- Power to provide relief from non-domestic rates in areas covered by a MDA.
- An option of a Council Tax precept to fund Mayoral functions are part of the framework.
- Power to draw up a local integrated transport plan and strategies, as well as bus franchising.
- Transport functions, including setting up and coordinating a Key Route Network, smart integrated ticketing, may run enhanced concessionary fares schemes
- Work with national government and Great British Railways to ensure Integrated Rail Plan, including HS2, Midland Main Line electrification etc.
- Economic development and regeneration.
- Adult education and skills. Supporting development of Local Skills Improvement Plans (LSIP) age 5 of 57

- Retrofit measures, clean heat coordination, and local energy plan.
- Duty to take action to improve public health given to EMMCCA as well as constituent authorities.
- Work closely with Police and Crime Commissioners on public safety.
- Work with local partners on long-term governance model for fire and rescue services.
- Working with national government to explore initiatives to address homelessness, domestic abuse, community safety, social mobility, and support for young people.

Consultation

- 4.4 During early November 2022, the four upper tier authorities sought and gained approval of their respective councils to proceed to consult on the proposal. The proposal document can be found at Appendix 1 and response form can be found at Appendix 2. The consultation period commenced on 14th November 2022 and ends on 9th January 2023.
- 4.5 Participation is via an online survey, public and stakeholder events. Details can be found through www.eastmidlandsdevolution.co.uk/
- 4.6 The Devolution Deal will be updated to reflect the outcome of the consultation and subject to the upper tier councils agreeing and the legislation being passed, the proposal to establish the EMMCCA should be submitted to Government during March 2023 as the formal request for a Mayoral County Combined Authority.

Key dates and stages

- 4.7 The following sets out the stages so far and those yet to happen.
 - March 2022 the upper tier authorities submitted initial proposals for the establishment of an EMMCCA
 - August 2022 formal agreement was signed by the government and upper tier authorities
 - October 2022 Proposal document reviewed by the four upper tier leaders
 - November 2022 Proposal document approved for consultation by the upper tier authorities
 - 14 November 2022 to 9 January 2023 consultation period
 - January 2023 Proposal updated to reflect the outcome of the consultation
 - March 2023 upper tier authorities approve submission to Government (around this time legislation expected to be in place)
 - April 2023 to May 2023 detailed design of EMMCCA operating model complete with shadow EMMCCA being formed
 - July 2023 to May 2024 shadow EMMCCA operating including recruitment of operational team
 - May 2024 Mayoral elections take place and transition from shadow to established EMMCCA complete

Implications for South Derbyshire

4.8 The process which led to the drafting and formal agreement of the Devolution Deal was, from the outset heavily prescribed by Government.

- 4.9 Whilst the devolution of power and responsibilities will be to the two upper tier and two unitary authorities, the Devolution Deal is should respect the importance of the continued role of the eight Derbyshire and seven Nottinghamshire district and borough councils whose powers and functions remain intact and who will also have specified consenting rights in respect of the exercise of some powers by the EMMCCA and/or Mayor that overlap District/Boroughs current powers.
- 4.10 Establishing a EMMCCA is a formal, legal step, allowing upper tier councils across the region to work more closely together in a more structured way. A Combined County Authority with a directly elected mayor, would be a new statutory authority created to lead collaboration between councils and would act as the recipient of powers and funding from Government. The creation of the EMMCCA will not result in the merger or take-over of district/borough councils nor will it require individual councils to give up their powers, except in the specific area of transportation, where some powers will be transferred from the upper tier authorities to the EMMCCA. The Consultation documents indicate that there are some functions of the EMMCCA that overlap with the Councils, as set out in the table below-

Legislative Provisions	From	Concurren exercise?	t Mayor or MCC	CA	No No No		Votin	g	
Business Rate Supplements Act 2009 Whole act, except s3(5)	All LAs hold	Yes	Mayor				Mayoral power, no voting - Note deal document suggests lead member required to vote in favour as part of a simple majority - so this is subject to a check with Govt MCCA able to amend the Mayor's budget if 2/3 majority agree		
Local Government Act 2003 Sections 1 - 6	All LAs hold	Yes	MCCA				To approve the MCCA budget, a simple majority which includes the Mayor and the lead member from each Constituent Council		
Combined Authorities (Finance) Order 2017	All LAs	Yes	Mayor for pred and mayoral fi MCCA for budg setting for MC	und get			Mayoral powers, no voting MCCA able to amend the Mayor's budget if 2/3 majority agree To approve the MCCA budget, a simple majority which includes the Mayor and the lead member from each Constituent Council Simple majority which includes the Mayor		
VAT Act 1994	All LAs	Yes	MCCA						
ection 33(3)									
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Sections 226, 227, 229, 230(1), 233, 235, 236, 238, 23		s Yes		MCCA		Consent of LPA affected		Simple majority which includes the Mayor	
ousing Act 1985 ctions 6, 8(1), 11, 12, and 18	District/ Bore	City Council and District/ Borough powers		MCCA		Consent of lead member of eac Constituent Con and of affected		Simple majority which includes the Mayor	

4.11 Whilst the consent of individual District and Borough Council is not required to enable the formation of the EMMCCA. It is proposed that a joint committee is established with Derbyshire District earl of Borough Councils as voting members to

Districts and Boroughs required nominate two Non-Constituent Members to the EMMCCA. This joint committee will also be used as the mechanism for the District and Borough Councils to nominate additional individuals as substitutes and nominate representatives to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee.

5.0 Financial Implications

5.1 At this stage, it is unclear whether there will be any direct financial implications for the Council. Given that the proposal will not affect the overall sovereignty of the Council, then it is assumed that Government will continue to fund local authorities though the annual Financial Settlement, as is the case in other devolution models. Although the Combined Authority will have Council Tax raising powers and the ability to charge a NNDR supplement on businesses, this should not directly affect the Council other than having to collect any Precept that is levied as part of the current system.

6.0 Corporate Implications

Employment Implications

6.1 The employment implications of the Deal are as yet unknown.

Legal Implications

6.2 The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill ("the Bill") seeks to establish a new type of combined county authority. This is distinct from a combined authority that can be created under the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. The progress of the Devolution Deal and the creation of a new combined county authority is subject to public consultation, the passage and coming into force of the combined county authority provisions in the Bill, the consent of the Constituent Councils affected to submit a formal Proposal to Government and approval of secondary legislation. The Council's consent or otherwise to the Devolution Deal will not affect its progress.

Corporate Plan Implications

6.3 The creation of the EMMCCA has possible service delivery implications for the Council, however, at this stage is unclear the impact the EMMCCA will have on the Council to deliver its Corporate Plan priorities.

Risk Impact

6.4 Not known.

7.0 Community Impact

Consultation

7.1 A formal process of consultation is to be undertaken from 14th November – 9th January 2023. This report seeks a resolution on the Council's consultation response.

Equality and Diversity Impact

7.2 An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken by the four upper tier authorities. A copy of the assessment is published at www.derbyshire.gov.uk

Social Value Impact

7.3 Not known

Environmental Sustainability

7.4 Consultation with the public and stakeholders about the establishment of an EMMCCA will not in itself directly have climate change implications. If subsequently established, it is anticipated that the EMMCCA will develop its own plans and strategies to address climate change issues subject to its own approval processes.

8.0 Conclusions

8.1 Whilst the Council's consent is not required for the creation of the EMMCCA, the creation of it has implications for the Council.

9.0 **Background Papers**

<u>East Midlands Devolution – A £1.14 billion deal for Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Derby and Nottingham.</u>

East Midlands Devolution Deal

Subject to ratification of the deal by all partners and the statutory requirements referred to within this document, including, public consultation, the passage and coming into force of the combined county authority provisions in the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, the consent of the Constituent Councils affected, and parliamentary approval of the secondary legislation implementing the provisions of this Deal.



Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities









Signature Page	
The Rt Hon Greg Clark MP Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing a	and Communities
Cllr Chris Poulter	CIIr Barry Lewis
Leader, Derby City Council	Leader, Derbyshire County Council
Cllr David Mellen	CIIr Ben Bradley MP
Leader, Nottingham City Council	Leader, Nottinghamshire County Council

Contents

Introduction	4
Summary of the Devolution Deal between the Government and four of the Local Author of the East Midlands comprising Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham & Nottinghamshire	rities
Governance	9
Finance and Investment	15
Skills and Education	17
Housing and Land	20
Transport	22
Net Zero, Energy and Environment	27
Innovation, Trade and Investment	30
Public Service Reform	31
East Midlands' commitments underpinning the Deal	32

Introduction

- 1. With a population of 2.2 million residents and a GVA of over £50.5 billion, the East Midlands area offers enormous potential. It has over 88,000 businesses providing over 930,000 jobs. It is a coherent economic area and has a number of significant sectors with potential for growth, including advanced manufacturing, engineering, clean energy, logistics, creative and digital, and health and pharmaceuticals, health and education, wholesale and retail trade.
- 2. Sizeable parts of the East Midlands area enjoy the benefits of having two cities, large towns and rural areas, and being home to gems of industry, such as Toyota UK, Rolls Royce, Alstom, and Boots, with expertise in aerospace, rail, life sciences and strong transport links. It contains three world class universities, which provide centres of research excellence. It is home to major tourist attractions such as the Peak District National Park, the National Forest, and Sherwood Forest. There are ambitions to maximise strategic opportunities presented through the East Midlands Freeport and the East Midlands Development Corporation, and to capitalise on announcements in the Integrated Rail Plan on HS2.
- 3. But the East Midlands area also faces challenges which impact on productivity levels and the ability to grow. Productivity lags behind the UK average, requiring a 14.6% increase to close the gap, and public spending per person has historically been below the UK average. There are places within the East Midlands area with high levels of poverty and poor social mobility. Greater local powers are needed to level up, to tackle the challenges facing the East Midlands, and to harness its huge economic opportunity for the benefit of the people in the East Midlands area and for the whole of the UK. In recognition of this, Government has already invested £107.5 million through the Levelling Up Fund, including the single largest award of £49.6 million for the South Derby Growth Zone. Local authorities across the East Midlands area have also been allocated a three-year total of over £55.1 million core UK Shared Prosperity Fund (over £66 million including Multiply programme funding).
- 4. The Government has set itself a mission that, by 2030, every part of England that wants a devolution deal will have one, with powers at or approaching the highest level of devolution, with a simplified, long-term funding settlement. The 2022 Levelling Up White Paper makes clear the case for devolution as the engine room of improved productivity and reduced regional disparities. Devolution will be critical to delivering our twelve headline Levelling Up missions, strengthening local leadership to act more flexibly and innovatively to respond to local need, whether on transport, skills or regeneration.
- 5. In the White Paper, Government published a devolution framework for the first time, setting out a clear menu of options for places in England that wish to unlock the benefits of devolution. This framework places a strong emphasis on the importance of high profile, directly elected local leadership, strong local

governance, and joint working across sensible and coherent economic geographies. The most comprehensive package is a Level 3 deal, for areas with a single institution over a sensible geography, with the strongest and most accountable leadership. These institutions include a Combined County Authority led by a mayor, referred to in this document as a Mayoral Combined County Authority (MCCA). A Combined County Authority is a new institutional model introduced by the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, that is currently progressing through Parliament. The four East Midlands authorities intend to use this new model, subject to the Combined County Authority provisions in the Bill receiving Royal Assent and coming into force. Devolution of power and responsibilities will be to the two upper tier and two unitary authorities but the deal respects the importance of the continued role of the eight Derbyshire and seven Nottinghamshire district and borough councils.

- 6. This document sets out the terms of a proposed agreement for such a Level 3 devolution deal between the Government and Derbyshire County Council, Derby City Council, Nottinghamshire County Council and Nottingham City Council (hereafter "the Constituent Councils"), together forming the East Midlands Mayoral Combined County Authority area covered in this deal (hereafter "the East Midlands MCCA" or "East Midlands area"). This document describes both the offer of powers and budgets from Government and the reforms and measures that the East Midlands will need to deliver. Central to this is the election of a directly elected mayor across the East Midlands area to champion its interests, deliver on local priorities and be accountable to local people. This agreement is subject to ratification by the Constituent Councils, provisions in the Levelling Up Bill receiving Royal Assent and coming into force, and to the statutory requirements for making the secondary legislation implementing the provisions of the deal. These statutory requirements include those Constituent Councils consenting to the legislation and Parliament approving it. Once this legislation is approved and made, the devolution deal will be confirmed.
- 7. The Constituent Councils of the proposed East Midlands MCCA and Government are hereby minded to agree a historic mayoral devolution deal which will provide powers and funding to enable the East Midlands area to unleash its full economic potential and in doing so level up, raise living standards for its communities and make a full contribution to the UK economy. The East Midlands devolution deal shows how levelling up can be done in practice with clear alignment to the twelve headline Levelling Up missions and long-term, devolved funding underpinning it.
- 8. The East Midlands devolution deal will unlock significant long-term funding and give local leaders greater freedom to decide how best to meet local needs and create new opportunities for the people who live and work there. The Government recognises that devolution is a journey, not a one-off event. This agreement is the first step in a process of further devolution. As institutions mature, they can gain greater responsibility, and the East Midlands MCCA will be able to deepen their devolution arrangements over time on the same basis as existing Mayoral Combined Authorities (MCAs), subject to Government agreement.

- 9. The Government commits to using the platform of this deal to work with the East Midlands MCCA in addressing key local challenges and opportunities, including the delivery of infrastructure and investment to build the transport network of the future, tackling productivity and skills gaps to support inclusive economic growth in towns, cities and rural areas, unlocking transformative regeneration and housing opportunities, and working together to tackle climate change, on our journey to 2030.
- 10. As a Mayoral Combined County Authority, the East Midlands will be a key partner of central government to drive regional growth and productivity, joining the existing MCAs in engagement with the Government from the date of this deal.

Summary of the Devolution Deal between the Government and four of the Local Authorities of the East Midlands comprising Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham & Nottinghamshire.

The Government and the Constituent Councils are minded to agree a devolution deal which will provide the East Midlands area with new powers and funding to increase opportunities and living standards through inclusive growth and productivity improvements.

A devolution agreement is contingent upon the Constituent Councils proceeding through the steps necessary to meet the governance criteria required for a Level 3 devolution deal.

This devolution agreement includes:

- The formation of the East Midlands Mayoral Combined County Authority (MCCA), (subject to the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill receiving Parliamentary approval and Royal Assent), and the election of a directly elected mayor to provide overall vision and leadership, seek the best value for taxpayer's money, be directly accountable to the area's electorate and to receive new powers on transport, housing and skills.
- Control of a £38 million per year allocation of investment funding over 30 years (50% capital, 50% revenue), to be invested by East Midlands MCCA to drive growth and take forward its priorities over the longer term.
- New powers to improve and better integrate local transport, including the ability to introduce bus franchising, control of appropriate local transport functions, e.g. local transport plans, and control of a Key Route Network.
- An integrated transport settlement starting in 2024/25.
- A commitment to explore a local partnership with Great British Railways so that the East Midlands MCCA mayor can help to shape and improve the local rail offer.
- New powers to better shape local skills provision to meet the needs of the local economy, including devolution of the core Adult Education Budget, as well as input into the new Local Skills Improvement Plans.
- New powers to drive the regeneration of the area and to build more affordable homes including compulsory purchase powers and the ability to establish Mayoral Development Corporations.
- Over £17 million for the building of new homes on brownfield land in 2024/25, subject to sufficient eligible projects for funding being identified.
- £18 million capital funding in this Spending Review period to support the delivery of housing priorities and drive Net Zero ambitions in the East Midlands area. This investment is subject to agreement of the relevant business cases.
- The East Midlands MCCA will plan and deliver the East Midlands area allocation of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) from 2025/26.
- The integration of D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership into the East Midlands MCCA will ensure there continues to be a strong and independent local

business voice which informs local decision making and strategic economic planning. In absorbing the role and functions of D2N2 LEP, the East Midlands MCCA will deliver a number of functions on behalf of central government departments.

- A commitment to developing, in partnership with the Government, an arrangement which ensures close cooperation with the Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs).
- A key leadership role for the mayor in local resilience and civil contingency planning, preparation and delivery.

More detail on these commitments is given in the main body of the document below.

Building on this framework, Government and the Constituent Councils commit to working together in the coming months and years to embed the MCCA in the East Midlands, deepen devolution, strengthen ties between local areas and government partners, and work collaboratively to deliver the Levelling Up missions across the East Midlands area. In particular, East Midlands MCCA will seek to work jointly with Government and other relevant partners to:

- Deliver transformative regeneration and new high-quality housing.
- Tackle local housing challenges including homelessness and rough sleeping.
- Tackle domestic abuse through an improved and system wide holistic approach.
- Develop strong links between the MCCA and PCCs to help join up public service delivery and strategies in relation to community safety.
- Develop an ambitious, long term mayoral social mobility strategy, supporting young people through their journey to adulthood.
- Strengthen the local visitor economy, creating an attractive and vibrant cultural and creative sector.
- Strengthen transport connectivity, building on the potential offered by HS2 and the consolidation of the existing core local transport funding into a multi-year integrated settlement.
- Capitalise on the East Midlands area's economic potential as part of the Midlands Engine.

Once the MCCA has been established, further devolved powers and consolidated funding settlements may be agreed over time and included in future legislation.

Governance

- 11. The Constituent Councils have a history of working well together. They have made very rapid progress since they joined forces in February 2022 to work together on a single devolution deal across all four local authorities, demonstrating effective partnership working.
- 12. The Constituent Councils have set out eight principles for the governance framework to be applied to the delivery of this devolution deal. The first four principles apply the devolution framework set out in the Levelling Up White Paper:
 - Principle one: Effective leadership with a directly elected mayor across the area.
 - Principle two: Sensible geography the East Midlands area covered by this
 devolution deal has one of the most functional, self-contained economic
 geographies in the country 92% of workers live in the area and 87% of
 residents work in the area.
 - Principle three: Flexibility this deal recognises the unique needs and ambitions of the area in its governance and programme.
 - Principle four: Appropriate accountability the Constituent Councils have committed to developing a Constitution and Assurance Framework that will confirm, clarify and formalise the intention of institutions and local leaders to continue to be transparent and accountable, work closely with local businesses, seek the best value for taxpayers' money and maintain strong ethical standards.

With a further four local principles:

- Principle five: Inclusivity The East Midlands Constituent Councils have committed to creating as inclusive a model of governance as possible, in pursuit of agreed outcomes. Devolution of power and responsibilities will be to the Constituent Councils, however, the importance of the continued role of the eight Derbyshire and seven Nottinghamshire district and borough councils will be respected.
- Principle six: Subsidiarity The East Midlands MCCA will perform a role that
 adds value to existing governance arrangements primarily focused on
 strategic place shaping functions such as plan making and strategic
 commissioning. The East Midlands MCCA will not create an additional layer
 of governance, but instead will bring the governance that currently sits at
 national government level down into the East Midlands, much closer to
 businesses and communities. Place making functions will be delivered
 through the existing local planning authority arrangements that are better
 placed to deliver functions for which they are statutorily responsible and as
 close to communities as is practicable.
- Principle seven: Commissioning The East Midlands MCCA will develop strategy across the geography, dealing with issues as diverse as economic growth and nature recovery. Programmes of interventions will be developed against these strategies.
- Principle eight: Choice The preferred governance model for the East Midlands MCCA will identify a mechanism for including district and borough councils in the geography. This model will respect the existing sovereignty of these lower tier local authorities. Individual councils will also be able to

continue to exercise choice about participation at sub-CCA tiers of partnership working.

These principles will be reflected in full in the constitution of the East Midlands MCCA, key aspects of the framework are set out below.

Mayoral Combined County Authority (subject to Royal Assent and coming into force of the relevant provisions in the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill)

- 13. As part of this deal the Constituent Councils intend to adopt the Mayoral Combined County Authority (MCCA) model which is provided for in the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill 2022 (LURB). Proceeding to establish the MCCA is dependent on Parliamentary approval of the relevant enabling provisions in the LURB. The target date for the first mayoral election is May 2024; mayoral terms will last four years. The timetable for establishing an MCCA and election of a mayor is dependent on if and when the LURB, which is currently progressing through Parliament, achieves Parliamentary approval and Royal Assent.
- 14.A key advantage of the MCCA model is its capacity for joint governance arrangements for key growth levers such as transport, skills, economic development, and regeneration, which allow for strategic prioritisation across its area and integrated policy development. In addition, a directly elected mayor provides greater local accountability and decision-making power, working in partnership with the MCCA and its Constituent Councils, and more widely with other public service providers including district and borough councils.
- 15. The MCCA institutional model includes upper tier authorities only. Both the Government and the East Midlands Constituent Councils place high importance on the MCCA working collaboratively with the 15 district and borough councils across Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire ("the district and borough councils") and ensuring that they have a voice in the MCCA. The East Midlands Constituent Councils will work with the district and borough councils in the area to develop the detail of the arrangements for appropriate district council input to the MCCA for inclusion in the detailed proposal which will be subject to consultation across the area, prior to formal submission to the Secretary of State. These arrangements will include a mechanism for appointment of representative non-constituent members from the district and borough councils to the MCCA, representatives of the district and borough councils on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Audit Committee, and may involve the establishment of advisory boards. These arrangements are for local choice and will not be expected to be specified in any implementing secondary legislation.
- 16. The proposed East Midlands MCCA will comprise the following members:
 - Voting Members:
 - The elected Mayor.
 - Eight elected members, consisting of a Lead Member for each Constituent Council and one further member appointed by each of the

four Constituent Councils. Constituent Councils may nominate two named substitutes for each of their MCCA members.

- 17. In addition, the MCCA will be able to appoint non-constituent and associate members. The maximum number of non-constituent or associate members is not to exceed the number of constituent members. Non-constituent members are to be non-voting unless the MCCA resolves to give them a vote on any issue. It will be up to the MCCA to set out further constitutional arrangements, including delegation to committees to support its operation, which may include members from district and borough councils who are not members of the authority.
- 18. It will be for the MCCA to decide on the nominating bodies for non-constituent members. The mechanism by which district and borough councils can nominate members to the MCCA will be developed in consultation with the district and borough councils and set out in the proposal which will be subject to consultation. The Constituent Councils currently consider that the mechanism could either be using existing joint committees or creating another committee or board comprised of the district and borough councils to nominate up to four representative non-constituent members. As well as district and borough council representation within the non-constituent or associate members on the MCCA, the Constituent Councils will consider how best to ensure that the blue light services, health and business voice are represented effectively on the MCCA.
- 19. Functions contained in this deal document will be devolved to the East Midlands MCCA by the Government subject to Parliamentary approval. Some of these functions will be exercisable by the mayor and some by the MCCA. Where these functions are local authority functions, they will be held concurrently with the local authorities in the area to ensure joined up decision making. Arrangements for the concurrent exercise of local authority functions will be a matter for agreement between the MCCA, its Constituent Councils and the district and borough councils, as appropriate.
- 20. The East Midlands MCCA will be given powers in relation to:
 - Economic development and regeneration functions.
 - Adult education and skills functions.
 - Transport functions including to set up and coordinate a Key Route Network (KRN) on behalf of the mayor.
 - Housing supply, regeneration and placemaking functions) plus provision of housing and land, land acquisition and disposal, and development and regeneration of land functions.
 - Power to borrow up to an agreed cap for non-transport functions.
- 21. The directly elected mayor for the East Midlands MCCA will autonomously exercise the functions set out below with personal accountability to the electorate, devolved from central government and set out in legislation. These functions will be:
 - Functional power of competence.
 - Housing and regeneration:

- Power to designate a Mayoral Development Area and then set up a Mayoral Development Corporation (see consent requirements at paragraph 60 below).
- Housing and land acquisition powers (see consent requirements at paragraph 27 below) to support housing, regeneration, infrastructure and community development and wellbeing.

Finance:

- Power for the mayor to set a precept on council tax to fund mayoral functions (resulting from the setting of the mayoral budget as set out at paragraph 25 and 26 below).
- Power to charge business rate supplement (subject to ballot).
- Transport:
 - Power to draw up a local transport plan and strategies (subject to the consent requirements at paragraph 26 below.)
 - Bus franchising powers.
- 22. No local authority functions are being removed from any local authority in the area, excluding transport functions as agreed with the Constituent Councils.
- 23. Where existing functions or resources currently held by Constituent Councils are to be shared with the mayor and the MCCA, this must be agreed by the Constituent Council(s). Additionally, the Government intends to legislate so that the mayor will have a power of direction allowing them to direct highway authorities on exercising their highway powers with regard to the Key Route Network. The MCCA, including the mayor, may exercise functions in relation to its area, including exercising functions outside its area, subject to and in accordance with statutory provisions.
- 24. Proposals for decisions by the MCCA may be put forward by the mayor or any MCCA constituent member. The mayor will have one vote as will other voting members of the MCCA. Any questions that are to be decided by the MCCA are to be decided by a simple majority of the members present and voting, unless otherwise provided for in legislation, and that majority must include the vote of the mayor.
- 25. In addition, for the following decisions the majority of members must include the lead member from each Constituent Council:
 - Approving the combined county authority's budget (excluding decisions which relate to the mayor's budget).
 - Setting a levy.
- 26. The mayor will be required to consult the MCCA on their strategies, and this will be subject to the following conditions:
 - The MCCA will be able to amend the mayor's budget if a two thirds majority of the voting members agree to do so.
 - The MCCA will be able to amend the mayor's transport strategy if a two thirds majority of the voting members agree to do so.

- 27. The following decisions will require the consent of the lead member of the relevant Constituent Council, or substitute members acting in their place, in whose area the decision will apply:
 - Designation by the Mayor of any area of land as a Mayoral Development Area leading to the establishment (by Order) of a Corporation (the consent of the relevant planning authority in whose area the decision will apply is also required as included in paragraph 60).
 - Compulsory purchase of land or buildings by the mayor or the MCCA
 - In addition, the exercise of Homes England compulsory purchase powers will also require the consent of the relevant planning authority.
 - Any decision by the Mayor that could lead to a financial liability falling directly upon that Constituent Council.
 - Such other matters as may be contained in the MCCA constitution and agreed with the mayor.
- 28. The mayor and the MCCA will be scrutinised and held to account by the MCCA's Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s) and Audit Committee.
- 29. For the Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s) and Audit Committee, at least one member will be nominated from each Constituent Council for each committee. In addition, there will be non-constituent council representatives on each Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Audit Committee. Further detail on the approach to nomination of those representatives will be developed in consultation with the district and borough councils in the area and included in the proposal to be consulted on. The Constituent Councils will also consider whether and how best to ensure that the blue light services, health and business voice are represented effectively on the Overview and Scrutiny and/or the Audit Committees. The Audit Committee will also include at least one independent person.
- 30. The chair and vice-chair of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be appointed by the MCCA, following a proposal put to them by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in question. The chair and vice-chair shall not be a member of a registered political party of which the mayor is also a member. The mayor and the MCCA may also seek to enhance scrutiny and develop wider conference with all elected members in the combined county authority's area to engage on key issues.
- 31. The Levelling Up White Paper committed to a reformed accountability framework for all areas with devolution deals in England. Government, the East Midlands MCCA and other areas with devolution deals will work together to determine how this can best work in practice, streamlining our approach to focus on clear and transparent outcomes and ensure the right mechanisms are in place to promote good practice, as well as address serious concerns. This is to ensure that local people have confidence that devolution is leading to improvements in their area. This framework will apply to the East Midlands MCCA as well as all existing areas

- that have agreed devolution deals and all future areas. The framework will be published later in 2022.
- 32. The proposals in this devolution deal are subject to ratification by each Constituent Council. This will include the development of a proposal, consultation on that proposal with local communities and business, and the submission of the outcomes of the consultation to the Government. Implementation of the deal is subject to the devolution measure in the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill receiving Royal Assent and coming into force, the Secretary of State being satisfied that the required statutory requirements have been met, the consent of each Constituent Council has been provided and parliamentary approval of the required secondary legislation has been provided.

LEP Integration

- 33. The Levelling Up White Paper announced the Government's intention to support the integration of Local Enterprise Partnership functions and roles into local democratic institutions. Further guidance on integration was published on 31 March 2022. This deal confirms the integration of LEP functions into the East Midlands MCCA, subject to government endorsement of an integration plan and the agreement of the East Midlands MCCA and D2N2 LEP.
- 34. The East Midlands MCCA will be supported to take on the functions and roles of D2N2 LEP in line with the published guidance. In doing so all parties will work together to ensure the independence of local business voice is maintained, with business voice represented on the MCCA, and advisory boards representative of the geographies and composition of their local communities. The East Midlands MCCA will ensure that any business advisory board or equivalent structure is meaningfully involved in local decision making, maintaining a culture of constructive challenge and scrutiny.
- 35. Government funding for integrated LEP functions will be subject to future spending decisions by individual departments and business planning. The Government reserves the right to modify the functions and roles set out in section 10 of the published guidance on LEP integration.

Finance and Investment

- 36. The Constituent Councils will create a fully devolved funding programme covering all budgets for devolved functions (the "East Midlands Investment Fund"), accountable to the East Midlands MCCA.
- 37. The East Midlands MCCA will use the East Midland Investment Fund to deliver a programme of transformational long-term investment. The Government agrees to allocate £38 million per annum for 30 years, (50% capital and 50% revenue,), which will form part of the East Midlands Investment Fund. This will be subject to five-yearly gateway review assessments to confirm that the investment has contributed to economic growth and levelling up. Once the East Midland MCCA Assurance Framework is confirmed with Government, and the Order is made establishing the MCCA, the East Midlands MCCA may have access to the Investment Fund prior to mayoral elections, subject to the agreement with the Government of suitable caps.
- 38. The East Midlands MCCA will have the flexibility to secure private and public sector leverage. As per local government guidance, the East Midlands MCCA will also be able to use capital receipts from asset sales as revenue funding for public service transformational initiatives.
- 39. The East Midlands MCCA will be given powers to borrow for its new functions, which will allow it to invest in economically productive infrastructure, subject to an agreed cap with HM Treasury. The East Midlands MCCA will agree overall debt limits with HM Treasury, and update HM Treasury about any deviation from its underlying borrowing plans in order to support HM Treasury in its duty to monitor and forecast changes in the fiscal aggregates. The East Midlands MCCA will also provide information, explanation and assistance to support the Office for Budget Responsibility in its duty to produce economic and fiscal forecasts for the UK economy.
- 40. The costs of establishing the MCCA will be met from the overall resources of the MCCA. To support the East Midlands MCCA in its early stages, the Government will provide £500,000 Mayoral Capacity Funding in 2023/24 once the establishing legislation is made and the Assurance Framework confirmed with the Government and £1 million in 2024/25. Any future capacity funding will be subject to Spending Review, in line with arrangements for other devolution deals. Additional activities or capital allocations from government will be supported by revenue allocated to the MCCA in line with practice for areas with existing devolution deals.
- 41. The mayor will have the power to issue a precept on local council tax bills to help pay for the mayor's work. This precept can only be raised for mayoral functions.

- 42. The mayor will have the power to introduce a supplement on business rates for expenditure on a project or projects that will promote economic development in the area, subject to a ballot of affected businesses.
- 43. The East Midlands MCCA will be the lead local authority for the planning and delivery of the United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) from 2025/26 if there is a continuation of the Fund and the delivery geographies remains the same. The East Midlands area's core UKSPF allocation will be subject to a future Spending Review and reconfirmation of overall UKSPF policy and delivery arrangements from 2025/26. If the delivery model remains the same as the previous Spending Review period, it is anticipated that the East Midlands MCCA will have overall accountability for the funding and how the Fund operates in the area, with wide flexibility to invest and deliver according to local needs. In carrying out this role, it will need to engage Constituent Councils, district and borough councils and other local partners to ensure that the needs of residents can be effectively addressed.

Skills and Education

Adult Education

- 44. Whilst the numbers of people in the East Midlands qualified to Levels 2 and 3 are above the England average, those qualified to Level 4+ are below the national average. Graduate retention is a challenge, with 35% to 39% of graduates from the area's three universities remaining in the East Midlands following graduation. There are significant place-based variations in skills and productivity across the East Midlands districts.
- 45. The East Midlands workforce is more concentrated in lower skilled occupations than the national average. Over the next 10-15 years, slower growth in the working age population and significant technology-driven changes are likely to require increased adaptability and re-skilling by people who are already working as well as maximising the potential of young people entering the labour market. Despite unemployment being low, there are still communities and places where unemployment and economic inactivity remains high with a growing number identified as having significant barriers to work.
- 46. The Government will fully devolve the Adult Education Budget (AEB) to the East Midlands MCCA from academic year 2025/26, subject to readiness conditions and parliamentary approval of the required secondary legislation conferring the appropriate functions. These arrangements do not cover apprenticeships or traineeships, even though the latter is funded through the AEB.
- 47. Prior to full devolution of AEB, the Government will work with East Midlands MCCA to support their preparations for taking on the relevant functions, including offering implementation funding on a 'matched-funded' basis and awarded through a business case process.
- 48. Upon devolution of AEB, East Midlands MCCA will be responsible for making allocations to providers and the outcomes to be achieved, consistent with statutory entitlements. The Government will not seek to second guess these decisions, but it will set proportionate requirements about outcome information to be collected in order to allow students to make informed choices.
- 49. The Government will consult with East Midlands MCCA on a funding formula for calculating the size of the grant to be paid to the East Midlands MCCA for the purpose of exercising these devolved functions.
- 50. In order to proceed with devolution, the Government needs to be assured of the following readiness conditions:
 - a. The Secretary of State for Education and appropriate accounting officer are assured that East Midlands MCCA is operationally ready to administer AEB and is satisfied the required statutory tests have been met.

- b. Parliament has legislated to enable transfer to the East Midlands MCCA of the current statutory duties on the Secretary of State to secure appropriate facilities for further education for adults from this budget and for provision to be free in certain circumstances.
- c. Agreement to a memorandum of understanding between the Department for Education and East Midlands MCCA that provides appropriate assurance that the named parties will work together to ensure the future financial stability of the provider base, including for sharing financial risk and managing provider failure.
- d. Learner protection arrangements are agreed between parties.

Skills and Employment

- 51.Local Skills Improvement Plans (LSIPs) will set out the current and future skills needs of the area and how local provision needs to change to help people develop the skills they need to get good jobs and increase their prospects. They will build a stronger and more dynamic partnership between employers and providers and allow provision to be more responsive to the skills needs of employers in local labour markets.
- 52. Working with the designated Employer Representative Body, utilising and sharing the local labour market intelligence and analysis it has developed,¹ East Midlands MCCA will support and provide input into the LSIP for the area.
- 53. The East Midlands MCCA will be considered alongside existing MCAs at future Spending Reviews with regard to the devolution of skills funding.
- 54. The Government and the region will also work together to better target employment support by understanding and utilising publicly available local labour market intelligence and analysis.² As part of the development of the economic framework, the Government is committed to working together on the region's strategic priorities and supporting the development of the region's economic framework.
- 55. The Department for Work and Pensions and the East Midlands MCCA will work together on its strategic priorities for employment through enhanced engagement by way of:
 - Membership of the joint Department for Work and Pensions and Department for Education Mayoral Combined Authority Advisory Group.
 - Regular engagement with the regional Employer and Partnership team in Jobcentre Plus, and strategic labour market partnership teams.

^{1, 2}This includes analysis produced previously by the LEP and its Skills Advisory Panel (funded by a Department for Education grant up until March 2023).

56.	The Departm MCCA could programmes.	have in the				
			Dogo 2	9 of 57		

Housing and Land

- 57. The relevant authorities in the East Midlands area have set out their local housing priorities around brownfield remediation, housing quality and decarbonisation, and systems improvement to support local supported and specialised housing needs. Government will work collaboratively with the East Midlands MCCA to address these challenges through devolved capital funding and upfront investment in housing and Net Zero projects.
- 58. The East Midlands MCCA will have broad powers to acquire and dispose of land to build houses, commercial space and infrastructure, for growth and regeneration. They will be able to invest to deliver housing for the area.
- 59. The East Midlands MCCA will have land assembly and compulsory purchase powers for housing purposes, subject to the agreement of the Constituent Councils and, where applicable, the district/borough council(s) where the relevant land is located, and to the consent of the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities.
- 60. The Mayor will have the power to designate Mayoral Development Areas and to create Mayoral Development Corporations, which will support delivery on strategic sites across the East Midlands area and may draw on existing work, subject to the agreement of local partners. Where relevant, this power may be exercised only with the consent of all members of the combined county authority appointed by the Constituent Councils, or substitute members acting in place of those members, whose local government area contains any part to be designated as a mayoral development area and the consent of the relevant planning authority, including national park planning authority if their area contains any part to be designated as a mayoral development area.

Working with Homes England

61. The East Midlands MCCA and Homes England will work together to identify key opportunities for developing a housing delivery pipeline across the East Midlands area. This will include exploring transformational regeneration opportunities at strategic locations across the area. Homes England and DLUHC will consider investment in housing propositions that emerge from the development of the pipeline, including through the Affordable Homes Programme and future funding streams, and explore the potential for developing a Strategic Place Partnership in time.

Funding

62. The Government will support this commitment to deeper partnership working with £16.8 million of devolved capital funding in 2024/25 to support the building of new

- homes on brownfield land, subject to sufficient eligible projects for funding being identified.
- 63. Further to this, the Government will, subject to annual reporting, provide £918,000 of capacity funding to the East Midlands MCCA across 2023/24 and 2024/25 to support development of a pipeline of housing sites across the MCCA area, supported by Homes England.
- 64. The Government will also provide up to a £9 million housing capital funding pot in this Spending Review period to support the delivery of housing priorities in the East Midlands area, subject to final business cases.

Transport

- 65. The Government recognises that the East Midlands approaches this devolution deal from a different position to many devolution deal areas, where local transport services were already managed across the devolution area. The Government and the constituent councils of East Midlands MCCA will therefore work together to agree a transition plan and future arrangements that deliver improved local transport services across the East Midlands area.
- 66. Subject to the agreement and implementation of that transition plan, a new, directly elected East Midlands Mayor and the East Midlands MCCA will become responsible for setting and delivering a transport strategy for the area, including for bus and tram services. Working with the Constituent Councils in the East Midlands, the Government will establish suitable arrangements for delivering this strategy, including in relation to the Nottingham tram (Nottingham Express Transit). Subject to these arrangements, and to the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill receiving parliamentary approval and Royal Assent, the Mayor and East Midlands MCCA will be responsible for the following powers and functions.

Transport plans

- 67. Responsibility for an area-wide local transport plan will be conferred to the East Midlands MCCA and exercised by the Mayor.
- 68. In line with best practice as set out in new local transport plan guidance planned for early 2023, the East Midlands Constituent Councils will develop a provisional area-wide local transport plan by March 2024 to be finalised by the Mayor and East Midlands MCCA once these are established. The Government recognises the significant changes to transport governance brought about by this deal which will require some additional capacity. The Constituent Councils or the East Midlands MCCA (as appropriate) will collectively be provided with an additional £500,000 of revenue funding in both 2023/24 and 2024/25 to accelerate this work and implement quantifiable carbon reductions to the higher standard recommended in related guidance.

Integrated Ticketing

69. In exercising its transport powers, East Midlands MCCA will seek, within available resources, to facilitate the accelerated delivery of smart, integrated ticketing across all local modes of transport in the area. East Midlands MCCA will continue to work with relevant partners – bus, tram, rail and other local transport operators, Midlands Connect, Great British Railways and the Department for Transport – to realise this ambition.

Consolidated transport budget

- 70. The Mayor will be responsible for a devolved and consolidated integrated local transport budget for the area of the East Midlands, consisting initially of the local highways maintenance funding (both the Pothole Fund and the Highways Maintenance Block) and the Integrated Transport Block. The integrated transport settlement will be available to the East Midlands MCCA following the first mayoral election which we expect to be in May 2024, for the final year (2024/25) of the current Spending Review period. The Government recognises the importance of transport in East Midlands and its importance in driving growth and productivity, levelling up and decarbonisation. The Government acknowledges that the Constituent Councils desire longer-term certainty that the integrated transport settlement will continue beyond 2025 and will therefore work with the East Midlands MCCA to agree an integrated multi-year transport settlement at the next Spending Review. At this point, following the example of other comparable Combined Authorities, opportunities for expanding the integrated transport settlement offer will be explored.
- 71. In addition, there may be further funds relating to transport for which the East Midlands Combined County Authority is eligible.

Roads

- 72. The East Midlands MCCA will set up and coordinate a Key Route Network on behalf of the Mayor, allowing the Mayor and the MCCA to take on highway powers for the Key Route Network. The Mayor and MCCA will take on the necessary highways powers to undertake this, to be exercised concurrently with the highways authorities, as agreed locally and set out in the proposal. Additionally, the Government intends to legislate to enable the conferral of a power of direction on the mayor, allowing them to direct highway authorities on exercising their highway powers with regard to the Key Route Network.
- 73. In partnership with Constituent Councils, the East Midlands MCCA and the Mayor will develop a single strategic asset management plan, and where practical, work towards streamlining contractual and delivery arrangements across the region. Unless otherwise agreed locally, all operational responsibility for highways will remain with the Constituent Councils.
- 74. The East Midlands MCCA will also be able to enter into agreements with the Government, other local authorities, combined authorities and National Highways, including to determine shared priorities for its strategic and Key Route Networks.
- 75. The Government is introducing a new £450 million local electric vehicle infrastructure (LEVI) scheme for local authorities to support local EV infrastructure delivery and will work with East Midlands MCCA to ensure the area is well placed to respond once funding arrangements are announced.

- 76. The MCCA will take on the powers held by their local authorities relating to moving traffic offences, to be shared concurrently with constituent highway authorities in line with the provisions of Part 6 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 for authorities outside London.
- 77. The MCCA will take on powers to issue permits as part of permit schemes to manage disruption. By taking on these powers over local roads, held concurrently with Constituent Councils, the MCCA will also be able to issue permits to manage disruption and will be able to seek agreement from the Secretary of State to run a lane rental scheme seeking contributions from utility companies and for highway works.
- 78. The Government will provide £50 million for the South Derby Growth Zone / A50 junction, subject to business case approval. The Government will consider the business case for proposals on the Chesterfield Staveley Regeneration Route.

Buses

- 79. Each Constituent Council in the MCCA, alongside bus operators, is responsible for managing and delivering bus services. The local authorities have created Bus Service Improvement Plans and will continue to implement these plans, supported by a total indicative allocation of £84 million from Government for the region.
- 80. Buses are a vital part of the overall transport network and the Mayor's transport strategy will set out a plan for buses across the MCCA area in conjunction with the Constituent Councils. The Government and East Midlands Constituent Councils recognise the opportunity created by this devolution deal to improve bus services across the area and the benefits of integrating bus functions with the MCCA.
- 81. Subject to the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill receiving Parliamentary approval and Royal Assent, East Midlands MCCA will be empowered to exercise franchising powers in the Transport Act 2000, including the power to consult on franchising without permission from the Secretary of State.
- 82. In any Enhanced Partnership or franchising arrangements, the MCCA will seek, within available resources, to facilitate: bus priority; real time information; incentivised ticket schemes; asset improvements; and the accelerated delivery of smart, integrated ticketing.
- 83. As per the commitment in the National Bus Strategy, the Government is working on the reform of the Bus Service Operators Grant (BSOG). Following the reform of BSOG should the East Midlands MCCA request BSOG be devolved to them, the Department for Transport will work with East Midlands MCCA to devolve BSOG to them in line with the consultation outcome.

84. The MCCA will have powers to run travel concession schemes. The East Midlands MCCA will explore enhanced concessionary fares schemes, including elements for rail and young persons.

Mass Transit

85. The East Midlands MCCA will explore mass transit opportunities, including integrating and potentially expanding the NET tram system, in support of the emerging East Midlands HS2 Growth Strategy, and will work with Government to deliver this.

Rail

- 86. Government will support the East Midlands MCCA in seeking a new rail partnership with Great British Railways, once established, so that their priorities can be taken into consideration in future decisions regarding their local network. The East Midlands MCCA will be considered a priority for these agreements, similarly to Mayoral Combined Authority areas, which will provide the ability to influence the local rail offer. Local priorities will need to be coordinated and compatible with surrounding areas and the needs of the national network.
- 87. Devolution of transport responsibilities to the East Midlands MCCA offers an opportunity to build on the Integrated Rail Plan for the North and Midlands (IRP), which set out the largest-ever single Government investment in rail. The East Midlands MCCA and the Constituent Councils will work with the Government to support the effective implementation of the IRP including HS2 East and Midland Main Line (MML) electrification which will provide direct HS2 connectivity for Nottingham, Derby & Chesterfield. The Government has committed to accelerate transport improvements at Toton, such as a station for local/regional services, with delivery subject to significant private sector investment on a 50:50 match-funded basis with the taxpayer. The East Midlands will work with the Government on the study and identify the required match funding for any potential intervention at Toton.
- 88. The MCCA will be the key local government point of contact for Network Rail on the Restoring Your Railway and station projects within the area and any equivalent future programmes.

Active Travel

89. The East Midlands MCCA to be responsible for preparation of Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan and the East Midlands MCCA will work with Active Travel England on any future walking and cycling schemes to ensure schemes are delivered to high standards, including compliance with Local Transport Note 1/20

(LTN 1/20). All cycling and walking schemes must be approved by ATE as complying with LTN 1/20.

Future Transport

- 90. The Derby and Nottingham area has already done significant pioneering work on their Government-funded Future Transport Zone. The MCCA will become the key contact for the Government on low carbon transport solutions and the challenge of 'first and last mile travel' in the area. The Government will continue to work closely with the area, alongside Midlands Connect, to support future aspirations.
- 91. The Government and Ofgem will work with the MCCA to deliver clean fuel infrastructure that will accelerate the establishment of a Net Zero transport network. This will include initiatives to ensure that sub-national actors, including Distribution Network Operators (DNOs), local government and other actors co-operate effectively when planning our future energy system.

Net Zero, Energy and Environment

Net Zero

- 92. The Government recognises the ambition of the East Midlands to be a leader in pioneering new forms of clean energy generation, and to act as an exemplar for climate change adaption, with Derbyshire leading the way on local nature recovery and natural capital strategies in collaboration with the Peak District National Park. An ambition to adopt a shared endeavours approach to tackling climate change adaptation and Net Zero targets is clear, and can build on existing ambitious strategies, such as the leading core city response to carbon reduction in Nottingham, including working on energy, climate change adaption, waste and local nature recovery and biodiversity strategies. In recognition, the government will make an investment in the East Midlands area of up to £9 million via a Net Zero capital funding pot this Spending Review that will enable the East Midlands area to drive their Net Zero ambitions. This investment is subject to agreement of a business case from the area.
- 93. As part of its Net Zero Strategy, the Government recognises that devolved and local government can play an essential role in meeting national Net Zero ambitions. Local leaders in the East Midlands area and elsewhere are well placed to engage with all parts of their communities and to understand local policy, political, social, and economic nuances relevant to climate action. This is why the devolution framework grants places the opportunity to adopt innovative local proposals to deliver action on climate change and the UK's Net Zero targets.
- 94. The Local Net Zero Forum, chaired by the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy, is cross-Government and brings together national and local government senior officials. Through representative organisations on the forum the Local Government Association (LGA), Association for Public Service Excellence (APSE), Core Cities and the Association of Directors of Environment, Economy, Planning & Transport (ADEPT) East Midlands MCCA will get the opportunity to discuss local Net Zero policy and delivery issues in the round.

Networks

95. The Government recognises the need to increase the East Midland's electricity network capacity to meet future electricity demand. We are committed to ensuring that areas with a devolution deal, including East Midlands MCCA, have a meaningful role in planning our future energy system for net zero, alongside other local areas as appropriate.

Buildings

96. The Government commits to explore the potential benefits of and design options for a place-based approach to delivering retrofit measures, as part of the

government's commitment in the Net Zero Strategy to explore how we could simplify and consolidate funds which target Net Zero initiatives at the local level where this provides the best approach to tackling climate change. This work will involve inviting East Midlands MCCA to work with the Government through the relevant representative organisations to consider if such an approach could accelerate the meeting of Net Zero goals and provide better value for money.

Clean heat

97. The Government has confirmed its intention to establish heat network zoning in England and, on 6th July 2022, introduced the Energy Security Bill to Parliament to legislate for zoning and regulation of the heat network sector. Under the zoning proposals, Zoning Coordinators within local government will be able to designate areas as heat network zones where heat networks are going to be the most cost-effective way to decarbonise heating and hot water within the zone. This will enable the East Midlands MCCA to assume the role of heat network Zoning Coordinator for its locality and play a key role in the delivery of heat decarbonisation infrastructure. This includes requiring certain buildings to connect to heat networks within the zones. The Government is committed to have heat network zoning in place by 2025.

Net Zero infrastructure

98. The UK Infrastructure Bank ("the Bank") will increase infrastructure investment across the UK by partnering with the private sector and local government to help tackle climate change and support regional and local economic growth. The Bank's advisory service, when launched, could offer advice and support to local actors, including the East Midlands MCCA, to help deliver on their objectives, including driving investment into Net Zero infrastructure and innovative local projects. It can also act as a convenor, bringing together local actors for collaborative projects, and where appropriate identifying where projects can be aggregated to achieve greater impacts.

Green jobs

- 99. Through the Green Jobs Delivery Group, we are working to ensure that workers, businesses and local areas, including East Midlands, are supported through the Net Zero transition. The East Midlands MCCA now has the opportunity to deliver green skills interventions at a local level through having a greater role in delivering the Adult Education Budget and UKSPF.
- 100. In order to facilitate a complete view of the energy infrastructure requirements across the East Midlands area, the East Midlands MCCA will fund the commissioning of a local area energy plan (LAEP) to enable long term planning on a regional basis.

Energy from Waste

101. Through its role in coordinating the delivery of heat network infrastructure, as set out in paragraph 96 we will give the East Midlands MCCA the tools it needs to evolve waste management in the region and exploit opportunities to re-use waste heat. The Energy Bill currently passing through Parliament includes powers for local Zoning Coordinators to ensure that waste-heat sources are used in heat networks and we expect this to be possible for the East Midlands MCCA to develop the potential transformation of power sites such as those at Ratcliffe, Drakelow, and any future expansion of the Nottingham City District Heat Network.

Environment

- 102. The East Midlands MCCA commits to producing an MCCA area Flood Alleviation Strategy, working with Environment Agency, Internal Drainage Boards and other key partners, that will help build community and economic resilience. This will support a comprehensive approach to tackling local nature recovery with a focus on green and blue infrastructure and maximising benefits for people, wildlife and our economy. It will not change the roles and responsibilities of Lead Local Flood Authorities.
- 103. Derbyshire County Council and Nottinghamshire County Council have provisionally agreed to act as the responsible authorities for the preparation of the Local Nature Recovery Strategies (LNRSs) for the Derby City and Derbyshire County, and Nottingham City and Nottinghamshire County LNRS respectively. Formal appointment of responsible authorities will be made following publication of relevant regulations and guidance and confirmation of funding. The Strategies will, for the area that they cover: map the most valuable existing habitat for nature; map proposals for creating or improving habitat for nature and wider environmental goals, and; agree priorities for nature's recovery. Defra will consider the role of East Midlands Combined County Authority in due course. In the meantime, both areas will work to ensure join up where possible across the two LNRS areas.

Innovation, Trade and Investment

- 104. Through the deeper devolution trailblazer deals announced in the Levelling Up White Paper, Government will bring together a holistic package of powers, roles, functions and strategic relationships to grow the private sector at a local level.
- 105. The trailblazers are designed as a blueprint for other devolution settlements, and Government will draw lessons from this approach to make a similarly broad and holistic offer to the East Midlands MCCA in due course. This offer aims to build the resilience of businesses and households in the East Midlands area to cost of living pressures, strengthen the East Midlands area's global competitiveness and empower local entrepreneurs.

106. This offer will explore the following, and potentially other, options to:

- Empower the East Midlands area to be able to secure greater private investment in local priorities, looking at the opportunities presented by the visitor economy.
- Strengthen the East Midlands area's local innovation capacity to help realise
 the potential of local innovation assets and the innovation potential of small
 and medium enterprises, with a particular focus on the area's advanced
 manufacturing centre and research institutions.
- Help to realise the global export potential of local businesses in the East Midlands area and maximise the local benefits of international trade.
- See the East Midlands area play a greater role in the delivery of support to local businesses.
- Engage the area on the delivery of digital infrastructure and potential economic and public service applications of data and data science.

Public Service Reform

- 107. Government supports the East Midlands area in its ambition for public service reform. Government commits to working with the region to explore initiatives to improve delivery of public services jointly with its Constituent Councils, such as how best to support residents with multiple complex needs through effective strategic and coordinated approaches to issues such as homelessness and rough sleeping, domestic abuse and community safety, social mobility and support for young people. Where appropriate, and as part of its Levelling Up agenda, Government will also consider devolving further powers to East Midlands MCCA to support public service reform in relation to the statutory duties held by its Constituent Councils.
- 108. The Government is committed to relocating roles out of Greater London and closer to the policy issues they are addressing, as set out in its Places for Growth programme. The relocation of policy and senior roles will benefit communities across the UK, enabling more diversity of thought into policy making leading to better-informed policy, built on an understanding of the impacts across the UK and drawing on a more diverse range of experiences, skills and backgrounds. The Government will continue to work with departments on the potential for any future relocations of Civil Service roles to the East Midlands area as part of the Levelling Up agenda. Since March 2020, over 80 roles have already relocated to the area.
- 109. To complement and support action by the Constituent Councils, the East Midlands MCCA will take on a local authority duty to take action to improve the public's health concurrent with the Constituent Councils. This will allow health to be considered throughout the East Midlands MCCA's activities as well as enable work on local issues where health plays a key role, for example tackling homelessness and rough sleeping.

Public Safety

- 110. The East Midlands MCCA, in partnership with the Government, will work with the Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire Police and Crime Commissioners to agree an appropriate arrangement to ensure close collaboration and productive joint working on public safety.
- 111. The East Midlands MCCA will work with local partners, including the FRAs, PCCs and the Home Office to identify the appropriate long term governance model for fire and rescue services in its area, which meet the principles of good governance set out in the Fire Reform White Paper.
- 112. The East Midlands MCCA will have a clear role in local resilience, following Government's full consideration of the role and responsibilities of Local Resilience Forums. This may include an opportunity for the East Midlands MCCA to participate in future testing and piloting of potential new roles and responsibilities prior to any fuller national roll out.

East Midlands' commitments underpinning the Deal

- 113. The East Midlands Constituent Councils will work with the Government to develop a full implementation plan, covering each policy agreed in this Deal, to be completed ahead of implementation. This plan must be approved by the Government prior to delivery. Any issues of concern with the subsequent delivery of this deal will be escalated to ministers and leaders to resolve, in keeping with the letter and spirit of devolution.
- 114. The East Midlands MCCA will be required to evaluate the impact of the East Midlands Investment Fund. The East Midlands MCCA and the Government will jointly commission an independent assessment of the economic benefits and economic impact of the investments made under the scheme, including: whether the projects have been delivered on time and to budget. This assessment will be funded by the East Midlands MCCA, but agreed at the outset with DLUHC and HM Treasury, and will take place every five years. The next five-year tranche of funding will be unlocked if the Government is satisfied that the independent assessment shows the investment to have met the objectives and contributed to economic growth. The gateway assessment (as set out in paragraph 37) should be consistent with the HM Treasury Green Book, which sets out the framework for evaluation of all policies and programmes. The assessment should also take into account the latest developments in economic evaluation methodology. The Government would expect the assessment to show that the activity funded through the scheme represents better value for money than comparable projects, defined in terms of a benefit-to-cost ratio and considered in the strategic context of local ambitions for inclusive growth across the whole geography.
- 115.As part of the implementation of the deal, the East Midlands MCCA and the Government will agree a process to manage local financial risk relating to the deal provisions.
- 116. Prior to the first mayoral election, the Government will work with the East Midlands area to give the public and stakeholders including Parliament a clear understanding of: the powers and funding that are being devolved to East Midlands MCCA; where accountability sits as a result of this deal; and how decisions are made.
- 117. The Government will continue to work with the Constituent Councils of East Midlands to meet their objectives for the East Midlands area, including in relation to transport, regeneration, economic growth, and tackling local challenges.
- 118. The East Midlands MCCA and its members will continue to adhere to their public sector equality duties, for both existing and newly devolved responsibilities.









East Midlands Devolution Consultation

The consultation will run from 14 November 2022 until midnight on 9 January 2023

What is the East Midlands County Combined Authority?

On 30 August 2022, Derbyshire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and Nottingham City Council entered into a £1.14 billion devolution deal with the Government.

The Councils have now jointly produced a draft proposal which proposes to create a new entity called the East Midlands Combined County Authority (EMCCA), including an elected Mayor. Please read the proposal document for more details on all elements of the deal (www.eastmidlandsdevolution.co.uk)

If the proposal is implemented, existing funding and powers will move from London, directly to us in the East Midlands, which means that local voices will play a greater role in decision making, the area will secure more investment to support future regeneration and will ultimately deliver better outcomes for local communities.

Why are we proposing these changes?

Our vision is for the 2.2 million people who live and work in the EMCCA Area to enjoy better health, greater prosperity, and an increased sense of wellbeing through the opportunities available to them within an inclusive and competitive area at the heart of the country.

We believe that the funding and powers we will receive as part of creating the EMCCA can help us to deliver this vision.

Our shared objectives are:

- Boosting productivity, pay, jobs and living standards
- Spreading opportunities and improving public services
- Restoring a sense of community, local pride and belonging
- Empowering local leaders and communities

The draft proposal on devolution provides a unique opportunity for the EMCCA to improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of the people who live and work in the area.

We have identified **four priorities to** focus on:

- 1. **Our homes** we will work with local authorities, landowners, developers and the full range of housing providers to promote regeneration, create affordable, good quality housing options and to retrofit existing homes to be more environmentally sustainable.
- 2. **Our skills** we will work collaboratively with employers, skills providers and local authorities to ensure our citizens have the opportunity to develop key skills and access opportunities to work well and build fulfilling careers. This will also help the creation of a
- 3. **Our transport** we will work with transport providers inside and outside the EMCCA Area to develop our collective infrastructure and create the best possible public transport system for our citizens, reflecting the strengths already within the four Councils to set our aspirations and support regeneration.
- 4. **Our carbon reduction/net zero ambition** we will work across the Area to lead the way in moving from fossil to fusion and play our part in achieving our national ambition to achieve net zero by 2050. Our ambition is that the EMCCA Area will be a leader in pioneering new forms of clean energy generation and will act as an exemplar for climate change adaption.

What will devolution mean?

- £38 million per annum over the next 30 years with a total guaranteed funding stream of £1.14 billion to help level up the Area.
- The ability for **local voices to play a greater role** in setting and delivering to the Area's priorities.
- Local control over a range of budgets like the Adult Education Budget, so that we can target our spend to the needs of people in our communities.
- Local powers to **tackle challenges specific to our Area** and harness its true economic potential, for the benefit of everyone who lives and works here.
- A new Mayor for the Area to give us a bigger voice, more influence, and a higher profile to make a strong case to the Government for more investment in the Area.
- Working more effectively on a larger scale across council boundaries, further strengthening
 partnership working across and between our counties and cities; supporting future
 regeneration and ultimately delivering better outcomes for local communities.

This deal would **not** mean removing or merging local councils. Each council would continue to exist and would still be responsible for most public services in the area. There will be no transfer of district and borough powers as part of the draft proposal.

What do you think?

The four councils have approved a consultation on the draft proposals. This deal would not mean removing or merging local councils.

The draft proposal document is available in the supporting documents section, along with "Frequently Asked Questions" and other documents which you may want to consider. These are available at www.eastmidlandsdevolution.co.uk.

This consultation asks for your views on the different priorities proposed for the EMCCA. At the end of the survey, you will have the opportunity to provide comments on the draft proposal more generally.

The results of the consultation will be considered in the first quarter of 2023 when the four councils are asked to consider whether to agree the final proposal for submission to Government. Following submission of the final proposal it will be considered by the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, and if they are content that the proposal meets the relevant requirements the devolution process will then be progressed, and legislation creating the EMCCA will be laid.

Page 43 of 57

Questionnaire			
How are you responding to this consultat	ion?		
_		2.L1	
I am a member of the public, giving	•		
☐ I am responding on behalf of, or as	a representative of, a	a business or organisation	n
Please provide the first half of your postcode:			
(e.g. LS1) PLEASE WRITE IN			
Section 1 – Governand	ce		
In order that powers and funding are avin place which provide Government with and statutory functions will be delivered	n assurance that fund	ding will be spent approp	•
The proposed Governance will include:			
 A new directly elected Mayor who will bring new powers and funding from central Government to the local level. This includes powers to set a budget and issue a precept. In addition, the EMCCA will feature eight members, consisting of a Lead Member and one further member appointed by each Constituent Council (Derbyshire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and Nottingham City Council). The EMCCA will appoint four non-constituent members from the Area's district and borough councils. The EMCCA will also appoint up to a further four non-constituent or associate members. The EMCCA will ensure that there is suitable representation from business. 			
Please find further details	s in the proposal	l document enclose	d.
Q1. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed Governance arrangements for the East Midlands County Combined Authority? PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY			
Adree	er agree Disagre	Strongly	Don't know
agree nor di	sagree Disagre	disagree	
		ш	Ц
If you have any comments you would will have an opportunity at the end of		d the Governance prop	osals, you

Page 44 of 57

Page No. 3

Section 2 – Homes Our homes – we will work with local authorities, landowners, developers and the full range of housing providers to promote regeneration, create affordable, good quality housing options and to retrofit existing homes to be more environmentally sustainable. Devolution will help us deliver this through:

- £16.8 million of funding controlled locally to spend in 2024/25 to support the building of new homes on brownfield land
- £9 million of housing capital funding to support the delivery of housing priorities
- New, broad powers to acquire and dispose of land to build houses, commercial space and infrastructure, for growth and regeneration.
- The Mayor's power to designate Mayoral Development Areas and to create Mayoral Development Corporations (which is a statutory body created to bring forward the regeneration of a defined area). This will support delivery on strategic sites across the Area through drawing on existing work, subject to the agreement of local partners.

Please find further details in the proposal document enclosed.

Q2. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals relating to homes?

PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY

Strongly	Agree	Neither agree	Disagree	Strongly	Don't know
agree		nor disagree		disagree	

If you have any comments you would like to make around the Homes proposals, you will have an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire.

Page 45 of 57

Section 3 - Skills

Our skills - we will work collaboratively with employers, skills providers and local authorities to ensure our citizens have the opportunity to develop key skills and access opportunities to work well and build fulfilling careers. This will also help the creation of a strong and sustainable local economy.

Devolution will help us deliver this through:

- Holding the Adult Education Budget (AEB) from academic year 2025/26
- Owning the ability to set allocations and outcomes to skills providers
- Supporting and shaping the Local Skills Improvement Plan (LSIP) for the Area.

Please find further details in the proposal document enclosed.

Q3. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals relating to skills?

PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY

Strongly agree	Agree Neither agree nor disagree		Disagree	Strongly disagree	Don't know
Ĭ				Ď	

If you have any comments you would like to make around the Skills proposals, you will have an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire.

Section 4 – Transport

Our transport - we will work with transport providers inside and outside the EMCCA Area to develop our collective infrastructure and create the best possible public transport system for our citizens, reflecting the strengths already within the four Councils to set our aspirations and support regeneration.

Devolution will help us deliver this through:

- A combined transport budget, with the Mayor and the EMCCA responsible for setting a transport strategy for the Area, including for public transport
- An additional £500,000 of funding in both 2023/24 and 2024/25
- The ability to accelerate the delivery of smart, integrated ticketing across all local modes
 of transport in the Area
- The opportunity to coordinate a Key Route Network (a collection of the most important local authority roads within the Area) across the Area
- Mass transit opportunities, including integrating and potentially expanding the NET tram system, in support of the East Midlands HS2 Growth Strategy.

Please find further details in the proposal document enclosed.

Q4. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals relating to transport?

PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY

Strongly	Agree	Neither agree	Disagree	Strongly	Don't know
agree		nor disagree		disagree	

If you have any comments you would like to make around the Transport proposals, you will have an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire.

Section 5 – Reducing Carbon/ Net Zero

Our carbon reduction/net zero ambition – we will work across the Area to lead the way in moving from fossil to fusion and play our part in meeting the national ambition to achieve net zero by 2050. Our ambition is that the EMCCA Area will be a leader in pioneering new forms of clean energy generation and will act as an exemplar for climate change adaption.

Devolution will help us deliver this through:

- An investment in the EMCCA Area of £9 million via a Net Zero funding pot
- The opportunity to increase the Area's electricity network capacity
- The opportunity to explore the establishment of heat network zoning in England (this is developing heat networks in specific areas where they can provide the lowest cost, lowcarbon heat to consumers) to decarbonise heating and hot water within specific zones
- The potential for increased investment from the UK Infrastructure Bank.

Please find further details in the proposal document enclosed.

Q5. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals relating to reducing carbon/net zero?

PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY

Strongly	Agroo	Neither agree	Diogram	Strongly	Don't know
agree	Agree	nor disagree	Disagree	disagree	DOI! I KNOW

If you have any comments you would like to make around the reducing carbon /Net Zero proposals, you will have an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire.

Section 6 – Public Health

Public Health – using powers under the NHS Act 2006, the EMCCA will complement and support the action already being taken by Constituent Councils to improve people's health and well-being across the Area. This will allow us to consider health and well-being throughout the EMCCA's activities as well as enable work on local issues where health plays a key role, for example, tackling homelessness and rough sleeping.

Devolution will help us deliver this by:

- Ensuring that improving and protecting the public's health is a central consideration to everything the EMCCA does, including in environmental considerations, planning, regeneration and transport
- Providing the EMCCA, under the NHS Act 2006, with the opportunity to deliver public health initiatives throughout the Area
- Enabling the EMCCA to support the Constituent Councils with tackling local issues such
 as homelessness and rough sleeping through integrating the consideration of public
 health into use of other powers by the EMCCA such as housing powers.

Please find further details in the proposal document enclosed.

Q6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals relating to public health?

PLEASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY

Strongly agree	Agree	Neither agree nor disagree	Disagree	Strongly disagree	Don't know

If you have any comments you would like to make around the public health proposals, you will have an opportunity at the end of the questionnaire.

PLEASE WRITE IN BELOW

Your Comments

About you

So that we can ensure we capture a diverse range of views through this consultation, it would be helpful if you could provide some information about yourself. This information is not compulsory, so please complete the questions where you feel comfortable.

The personal information you provide will only be used in the manner described in the privacy policy which is included with this questionnaire. In addition to the information provided in the privacy policy, any information submitted via this document will also be processed, analysed and reported by Ipsos on behalf of Derbyshire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and Nottingham City Council.

IF RESPONDING ON BEHALF OF, OR AS A REPRESENTATIVE OF, A BUSINESS OR ORGANISATION

If you told us you are responding to the consultation with views that represent a group or organisation please complete questions 8 and 9.

If you told us you are responding as an individual, please skip ahead to question 10.

Responding on behalf of a group or organisation

Please select the sector that best describes your group or organisation: ASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY
Local government
Voluntary and community sector
Elected representative
Civil service or government
Charity
Academic
Action group
Transport
Business (please answer Q8b-Q8d)
Something else
Prefer not to say
If 'something else' PLEASE WRITE IN:

+			+
		b. If you selected 'business' - please select the sector that best describes your business EASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY	
		Manufacturing	
	H	Food and drink manufacturing	
	П	Creative and digital	
	$\overline{\Box}$	Health and life sciences	
	$\overline{\Box}$	Low carbon and environmental	
	\Box	Financial and professional services	
		Something else	
		Prefer not to say	
		If 'something else' PLEASE WRITE IN:	
	Q86	c. What size organisation?	
		EASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY	
		Large business - a business with 250 or more employees	
		Medium-sized business - a business with 50 to 249 employees	
		SME - a business with 0 to 49 employees	
	Q86	d. Within which local authority area is your business located?	
	PLI	EASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY	
		Derby City Council	
		Nottingham City Council	
		Amber Valley Borough Council	
		Bolsover District Council	
		Chesterfield Borough Council	
		Derbyshire Dales District Council	
		Erewash Borough Council	
		North East Derbyshire District Council	
		High Peak Borough Council	
	Ц	South Derbyshire Council	
	Ц	Ashfield District Council	
	브	Bassetlaw District Council	
	브	Broxtowe Borough Council	
	Ц	Gedling Borough Council	
	브	Newark and Sherwood District Council	
		Mansfield District Council	
		Rushcliffe Borough Council	7
		Other/out of area PLEASE WRITE IN: Page 52 of 57	
	Pag	e No. 13 East Midlands Devolution Consultation	
+			+

Q9.	Please tell us about the group, or	rganisa	tion, or b	usiness <u>y</u>	you repi	esent:		
Nan	ne of organisation:							
You	r position in the organisation:							
Re	sponding as an individ	ual						
	. Please tell us which of the Loca ect your bins.	l Autho	rity Areas	s you live	e in? (NI	3 - this is	the cour	ncil who
PLE	ASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY							
	Derby City Council							
	Nottingham City Council							
	Amber Valley Borough Council							
	Bolsover District Council							
	Chesterfield Borough Council							
	Derbyshire Dales District Council							
	Erewash Borough Council							
	North East Derbyshire District Co	ouncil						
	High Peak Borough Council							
	South Derbyshire Council							
	Ashfield District Council							
	Bassetlaw District Council							
	Broxtowe Borough Council							
	Gedling Borough Council							
	Newark and Sherwood District C	ouncil						
	Mansfield District Council							
	Rushcliffe Borough Council							
	Other/out of area PLEASE WRIT	ΓE IN:						
	. How do you describe your gend	ler iden	tity?					
	Female			Other				
	Male			Prefer r	not to sa	y		
Pref	er to describe as PLEASE WRIT	E IN:						

Q12	. How old are you?		
PLE	ASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY		
	Under 18		45-54
	18-24		55-64
	25-34		65-74
	35-44		75+
	Prefer not to say		
laste	B. Are your day-to-day activities limited becaused, or is expected to last, at least 12 months?		a health problem or disability which has
	Yes, limited a lot	П	No
			Prefer not to say
ш	Yes, limited a little	ш	Freiei flot to say
Q14	. What is your ethnic group identity?		
PLE	EASE TICK ONE BOX ONLY		
Whi	te/White British	As	sian/Asian British
	English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British		Indian
	Irish		Pakistani
	Gypsy or Irish traveller		Bangladeshi
	Eastern European		Chinese
	Any other White background		Kashmiri
			Any other Asian background
Blac	ck/African/Caribbean/Black British		
	African	Mi	xed/multiple ethnic groups
	Caribbean	느	White and Black Caribbean
Ш	Any other Black/African/Caribbean background	L	White and Black African
	_		White and Asian
			Any other Mixed/multiple ethnic background
Oth	er ethnic group		-
	Arab		
	Other ethnic group		Prefer not to say

Page 54 of 57

Q15. \	What is your religion?
PLEA	SE TICK ONE BOX ONLY
	lone
	Christian (all denominations)
	Muslim (1997)
□ s	sikh
☐ J	ewish
П	lindu
	ny other religion
□Р	Prefer not to say
Q16. \	Which of the following best describes your sexual orientation?
PLEA	SE TICK ONE BOX ONLY
П	leterosexual or straight
	Say or lesbian
В	tisexual
□ P	Prefer not to say
Prefer	to describe as PLEASE WRITE IN :

END OF QUESTIONS

Thank you for completing the consultation document. Your feedback is important to us.

Please return your completed questionnaire to us in an envelope via or freepost address (no stamp required):

Freepost East Midlands Devolution Consultation

by 9 January 2023.

Nottinghamshire Derbyshire Devolution Consultation Privacy Policy

This Ipsos UK Market Research Study and your personal data

22-079695-01 Nottinghamshire Derbyshire Devo Consultation

This Privacy Notice explains who we are, the personal data we collect, how we use it, who we share it with, and what your legal rights are.

About Ipsos UK

Ipsos UK Limited is a specialist research agency, commonly known as "Ipsos UK". Ipsos
UK is part of the Ipsos worldwide group of companies, and a member of the Market
Research Society. As such we abide by the Market Research Society Code of Conduct and
associated regulations and guidelines.

What is Ipsos UK's legal basis for processing your personal data?

• Ipsos UK requires a legal basis to process your personal data. Ipsos' legal basis for processing is your consent to take part in this research survey. If you wish to withdraw your consent at any time, please see the section below covering 'Your Rights'.

How will Ipsos UK use any personal data including survey responses you provide?

Firstly, responding to this survey is entirely voluntary and any answers are given with your consent.

- Ipsos UK will keep your responses in strict confidence in accordance with this Privacy Policy. Ipsos UK can assure you that you will NOT be identifiable in any published results
- Ipsos UK will use your personal data and responses solely for research purposes and to produce anonymous, statistical research findings and insights

How will Ipsos ensure my personal information is secure?

- Ipsos UK takes its information security responsibilities seriously and applies various
 precautions to ensure your information is protected from loss, theft or misuse. Security
 precautions include appropriate physical security of offices and controlled and limited
 access to computer systems.
- Ipsos UK has regular internal and external audits of its information security controls and working practices and is accredited to the International Standard for Information Security, ISO 27001.

How long will Ipsos UK retain my personal data and identifiable responses?

• Ipsos UK will only retain your data in a way that can identify you for as long as is necessary to support the research project and findings. In practice, this means that once we have

Page 56 of 57

- satisfactorily reported the anonymous research findings, we will securely remove your personal, identifying data from our systems.
- For this project we will securely remove your personal data from our systems by 9/7/23.

Your rights

- You have the right to access your personal data within the limited period that Ipsos holds it.
- Providing responses to this survey is entirely voluntary and is done so with your consent. You have the right to withdraw your consent and to object to our processing of your personal data at any time.
- You also have the right to rectify any incorrect or out-of-date personal data about you which we may hold.
- If you want to exercise your rights, please contact us at the below lpsos address.
- You have the right to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner's Office (ICO), if
 you have concerns on how we have processed your personal data. You can find details
 about how to contact the Information Commissioner's Office at
 https://ico.org.uk/global/contact-us/ or by sending an email to: casework@ico.org.uk.

Where will my personal data be held & processed?

All of your personal data used and collected for this survey will be stored by Ipsos in data centres and servers within the United Kingdom.

How can I contact Ipsos UK about this survey and/or my personal data?

Contact lpsos:

Email: com with "22-079695-01 Nottinghamshire Derbyshire Devo Consultation" in the email subject line

Post:

22-079695-01 Nottinghamshire Derbyshire Devo Consultation UK BES Helpdesk Compliance Department Market and Opinion Research International Limited 3 Thomas More Square London E1W 1YW United Kingdom.